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Attorney General of California
KEN ALEX
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Telephone: (510) 622-2100
Fax: (510) 622-2270

Attorneys for People of the State of California, ex

rel. Edmund G. Brown Jr., Attorney General

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
ex rel. EDMUND G. BROWN JR.,
ATTORNEY GENERAL,

Plaintiff,
V.

FEDERAL HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY;
EDWARD DeMARCO, in his capacity as
Acting Director of FEDERAL HOUSING
FINANCE AGENCY; FEDERAL HOME
LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION;
CHARLES E. HALDEMAN, JR. in his
capacity as Chief Executive Officer of
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE
CORPORATION; FEDERAL NATIONAL
MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION; MICHAEL J.
WILLIAMS, in his capacity as Chief Executive
Officer of FEDERAL NATIONAL
MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION,

Defendants.

Case No.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND EQUITABLE RELIEF (UNFAIR
BUSINESS PRACTICES; VIOLATION
OF THE NATIONAL
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT)

(42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 et seq.; 28 U.S.C. 2201;
Cal. Code Civ. Proc. § 1060; Cal. Bus. &
Prof. Code § 17200 ef seq.)

INTRODUCTION

1. California has pioneered financing for solar power systems, and energy and water

efficiency retrofits for homeowners. These programs, called Property Assessed Clean Energy
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(“PACE”) programs, reduce energy and water use, provide clean power, and are part of
California’s efforts to promote clean energy and green jobs. PACE programs do not operate
using loans in a traditional sense. Instead, under PACE, local governments finance the upfront
installation costs, and homeowners repay those costs over a period of years through assessments
on the property tax bill. The California Legislature has declared that “[e]nergy conservation
efforts, including the promotion of energy efficiency improvements to residential, commercial,
industrial, or other real property are necessary to address the issue of global climate change”;
“[t]he upfront cost of making residential, commercial, industrial, or other real property more
energy efficient prevents many property owners from making those improvements”; and that,
therefore, PACE serves “a public purpose[.]”"

2. Now, by misrepresenting the nature of the PACE programs and municipal financing,
in violation of California law, Defendants Federal National Mortgage Association (commonly
known as “Fannie Mae”) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (called “Freddie
Mac”), are severely hampering California’s efforts to assist thousands of California homeowners
to reduce their energy and water use, help drive the state’s green economy, and create significant
numbers of skilled, stable and well paying jobs. The actions of these government-sponsored,
shareholder-owned private corporations have placed California’s PACE programs — and the
hundreds of millions of dollars in federal stimulus money supporting them — at immediate risk
while benefitting their own pecuniary interests.

3. On May 5, 2010, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac each issued advice letters to all
lending institutions stating that mortgages for residences that also have PACE “loans” with first
lien priority (providing PACE funders with priority in recovering unpaid assessments in case of
foreclosure) are not allowed under these entities’ standardized mortgage documents. Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac together own or guarantee about half of all residential home mortgages in the
United States. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac purchase home loans from banks and other lenders,

in theory freeing up more capital for additional home mortgage lending. Because Fannie Mae

' Cal. Streets & Hwy. Code § 5898.14.
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and Freddie Mac control the mortgage resale market, lenders will not issue mortgages that do not
meet Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s requirements. As a result, Fannie Mae’s and Freddie
Mac’s determination — which misrepresents California law — essentially forecloses residential
PACE programs.

4. On July 6, 2010, the Federal Housing Finance Agency (“FHFA”) affirmed these
entities’ loan purchase restrictions for residences with PACE funding. Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac,
and FHFA mischaracterize PACE funding as “loans,” rather than “assessments” as they are
unequivocally defined under California law. The FHFA acknowledged that, by affirming Fannie
Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s position, the agency was effectively stopping PACE programs in
California — in its words, effecting a “pause” in PACE — with no clear indication of when, if ever,
such programs would be allowed to move forward in the future. At this critical juncture, this
“pause” will cause permanent, irreparable damage to PACE, threatening tens of millions of
dollars of federal stimulus monies currently allocated for California PACE programs. FHFA has
effectively precluded PACE programs in California and deprived California and its citizens of the
associated residential energy and water efficiency and renewable energy benefits, thereby
significantly impacting the human environment, without completing the required environmental
review under the National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA™).

5. Accordingly, California seeks a prompt judicial declaration as against Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac that, under California law: (a) PACE programs operate by assessments, not
loans, and such assessments are valid; (b) liens that may result from PACE assessments, like
those resulting from other types of assessments, have priority over mortgages; and (c)
participation in PACE programs is compatible with, and not in violation of, Fannie Mae’s and
Freddie Mac’s standardized mortgage documents. California also seeks a declaration that FHFA
is required to conduct the required environmental review under NEPA before taking any action
that will limit or foreclose PACE in California.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
6. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (action arising under the

laws of the United States), 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-706 (Administrative Procedure Act), 12 U.S.C.
3

Complaint for Declaratory and Equitable Relief




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

1452(f) (original jurisdiction in federal district court for actions involving Freddie Mac), and 28
U.S.C. § 1367 (supplemental jurisdiction).

7. An actual controversy exists between the parties within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. §
2201(a). This Court may grant declaratory relief, injunctive relief, and any additional relief
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201, 2202 and 5 U.S.C. §§ 705, 706 and under any relevant state laws
pursuant to its supplemental jurisdiction.

8. The FHFA has made a final administrative determination that is subject to review
under the APA. 5 U.S.C. § 702.

9. Venue lies in this judicial district by virtue of 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e) and Civil Local
Rule 3-2(d), because a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims
occurred in this district.

PARTIES

10. Defendant Fannie Mae is a federally chartered, private corporation, of a type
commonly referred to as a government-sponsored enterprise (“GSE”). Fannie Mae facilitates the
secondary market in residential mortgages. Together with Freddie Mac, another GSE, Fannie
Mae owns or guarantees about half the home loans in the U.S. and California. Fannie Mae is
publicly traded, has a Board of Directors, and is required to report to the Securities and Exchange
Commission. By statute, Fannie Mae has the power to sue and be sued in both state and federal
court. 12 U.S.C. § 1723a(a).

11. Defendant Michael J. Williams is the Chief Executive Officer of Fannie Mae and is
sued in that capacity.

12. Defendant Freddie Mac is a federally chartered, private corporation and also a GSE.
Freddie Mac facilitates the secondary market in residential mortgages. Together with Fannie
Mae, another GSE, Freddie Mac owns or guarantees about half the home loans in the U.S. and
California. Freddie Mac is publicly traded, has a Board of Directors, and is required to report to
the Securities and Exchange Commission. By statute, Freddie Mac has the power to sue and be

sued. 12 U.S.C., § 1452(c).
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13. Defendant Charles E. Haldeman, Jr. is the Chief Executive Officer of Freddie Mac
and is sued in that capacity.

14. Defendant FHFA is a federal government agency created on July 30, 2008, to oversee
Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and the Federal Home Loan Banks. As of June 2008, the combined
debt and obligations of these entities totaled $6.6 trillion, exceeding the total publicly held debt of
the United States by $1.3 trillion.

15. Defendant Edward DeMarco is the Acting Director of the Federal Housing Finance
Agency and is sued in that capacity.

16. California brings this action by and through Attorney General Edmund G. Brown Jr.
Attorney General Brown is the chief law enforcement officer of the state. This complaint is
brought pursuant to the Attorney General’s independent constitutional, common law, and
statutory authority to represent the public interest. Cal. Gov. Code §§ 12600-12612; Cal. Const.,
art. V, § 13.

MISCHARACTERIZATION OF CALIFORNIA LAW

17. The actual controversy at issue in this complaint arises out of Fannie Mae’s and
Freddie Mac’s participation in, and influence over, the residential mortgage market in California
and, more specifically, actions taken by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac on May 5, 2010 and by
FHFA on July 6, 2010.

18. For well over 100 years, local governments in California have used their assessment
powers to finance improvements that serve a public purpose, such as the paving of roads,
sidewalk improvements, and the undergrounding of utilities. Under California law, it is well
established that in some instances, privately-owned improvements, e.g., seismic and fire-related
improvements, can also serve a valid public purpose.

19. Under longstanding California law, assessments create liens that have priority over
mortgages.

20. By their practices and documents, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac have for decades

accepted and agreed that in California, assessments constitute priority liens.
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21. Under California law, local governments in California may finance the installation on
private property of roof-top solar, other distributed generation renewables, and energy and water
efficiency improvements using the same assessment mechanism. Charter cities are authorized to
establish PACE programs under the Communities Facilities District Act (commonly known as
Mello-Roos Act), which has been in existence since 1982.> With the passage of California
Assembly Bill 811 (AB 811) in 2008,’ all other local governments in California are similarly
authorized. Under the plain language of California law, any liens that result from PACE
assessments have priority over mortgages, operating in the same way as other assessments.

22. PACE programs have been multiplying rapidly since the passage of AB 811. One
very successful example is Sonoma County’s Energy Independence Program. Since March of
2009, Sonoma County’s program has financed nearly 1,000 projects — including, solar panels,
tankless water heaters, reflective roofing, smart irrigation controllers, and attic insulation —
totaling over $30 million.

23. The White House highlighted PACE in its “Recovery Through Retrofit” initiative in
October 2009. In the accompanying report,” the White House noted the benefits of PACE:
“Property tax or municipal energy financing allows the costs of retrofits to be added to a
homeowner’s property tax bill, with monthly payments generally lower than utility bill savings.
This arrangement attaches the costs of the energy retrofit to the property, not the individual,
eliminating uncertainty about recovering the cost of the improvements if the property is sold.”
The White House further stated that “Federal Departments and Agencies will work in partnership
with state and local governments to establish standardized underwriting criteria and safeguards to
protect consumers and minimize financial risks to the homeowners and mortgage lenders.” On

October 18, 2009, the White House released its “Policy Framework for PACE Financing

2 Cal. Gov. Code § 53311 et seq.
3 Cal. Streets & Hwy. Code §§ 5898.12, 5898.14, 5898.20, 5898.21, 5898.22, and

5898.30.
* Available at
http://www.whitehouse.gov/assets/documents/Recovery Through Retrofit Final Report.pdf.
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Programs,” in which Vice President Joseph Biden announced support “for the use of federal
funds for pilot programs of PACE financing to overcome barriers for families who wish to invest
in energy efficiency and renewable energy improvements.”

24. The Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”’) and Department of
Energy (“DOE”) expressly identified PACE as eligible for receipt of hundreds of millions of
dollars in federal stimulus funds. Through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act’s
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program, DOE awarded over $300 million
directly to larger California local governments, and an additional $35 million for disbursement
through the California Energy Commission (“CEC”) to smaller local governments. The Recovery
Act also funded the State Energy Program, under which California received more than $226
million. Both DOE and the CEC expressly supported the use of these funds for PACE programs,
and, accordingly, dozens of counties and cities across California were poised to launch their own
PACE programs in part with federal dollars.

25. On May 5, 2010, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac each unexpectedly issued a “Lender
Letter” directed to the home mortgage industry. Fannie Mae’s Lender Letter (Exhibit A to this

Complaint) provides in relevant part:

Fannie Mae has received a number of questions from seller-servicers regarding
government-sponsored energy loans, sometimes referred to as Property Assessed Clean
Energy (PACE) loans. PACE loans generally have automatic first lien priority over
previously recorded mortgages. The terms of the Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac Uniform
Security Instruments prohibit /oans that have senior lien status to a mortgage. As PACE
programs progress through the experimental phase and beyond, Fannie Mae will issue
additional guidance to lenders as may be needed from time to time.

(Emphasis added.)
26. Freddie Mac’s May 5, 2010 Lender Letter (also attached as Exhibit A) provides in

relevant part:

The purpose of the Industry Letter is to remind Seller/Servicers that an energy-related lien
may not be senior to a Mortgage delivered to Freddie Mac. Sellers/Servicers should
determine whether a state or locality in which they originate mortgages has an energy loan
program and whether a first priority lien is permitted.

> Available at http://www.whitehouse.gov/assets/documents/PACE_Principles.pdf.
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27. On May 7, 2010, DOE, after consultation within the federal government and with
other stakeholders, issued its “Guidelines for Pilot PACE Financing Programs™ to “help ensure
prudent financing practices during the current pilot PACE programs.”

28. On July 6, 2010, FHFA issued a definitive Statement on PACE, together with a cover
letter addressed to the California Attorney General. FHFA’s Statement provides that the May 5,
2010 Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac “lender letters remain in effect.” Further, both the cover letter
and the Statement expressly acknowledge that by affirming Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s May
5, 2010 Lender Letters, the FHFA is effecting a “pause” in California PACE programs. While the
Statement holds open the possibility that at some time in the future, the FHFA may allow PACE
programs to resume, there is no schedule for the agency to revisit its determination and no
guarantee that it will authorize PACE to proceed. In addition, as discussed in the immediately
following paragraphs, any pause in PACE at this critical juncture likely is the death knell of
widespread, effective PACE programs in California. The FHFA’s Statement and cover letter to
the California Attorney General are attached to this Complaint as Exhibit B.

29. The May 5, 2010, Lender Letters and the FHFA’s Statement misrepresent the law
governing PACE programs in California. California state law is clear: PACE financing is not
accomplished through loans, but through assessments.

30. Under California law, liens resulting from PACE assessments, like other assessments,
have priority over mortgages. Defendants seek to change that priority for their own benefit in
violation of California law.

31. Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s longstanding business practices in California,
reflecting their interpretation of their Uniform Security Instruments (including the California
Deed of Trust), recognize that assessments can attain priority over mortgages, and that a
mortgage holder subject to assessments that can attain priority is not inherently in violation of the
California Deed of Trust. The Lender Letters and the FHFA Statement intentionally

mischaracterize California law relating to PACE in order to support their unfounded contention

6 Available at
http://www]1.eere.energy.gov/wip/pdfs/arra_guidelines_for pilot pace programs.pdf.
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that participating in PACE is contrary to the Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s Uniform Security
Instruments.
UNFAIR AND UNLAWFUL ACTS OR PRACTICES

32. The May 5, 2010 Lender Letters and the July 6, 2010 FHFA Statement have seriously
disrupted existing and incipient PACE programs in California, as shown by the following
examples. Sonoma County’s Energy Independence Program, discussed above, is California’s
largest operating local PACE program. Defendants’ actions have adversely affected the program.
Among other things, since Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac issued their Lender Letters in May,
several property owners participating in Sonoma County’s PACE program have been unable to
refinance or transfer their property without paying off the amount financed in full,
notwithstanding that the property owners were current in their payment of PACE assessments.
Before Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s Lender Letters, 22 participants in Sonoma County’s
PACE program were able to refinance without difficulty. Defendants’ actions create substantial
uncertainty for Sonoma County PACE participants going forward. San Francisco’s PACE
program launched in April of this year, and San Francisco scrupulously followed the DOE
guidelines for PACE programs. San Francisco has now been forced to suspend operations
indefinitely. In May of this year, Placer County was ready to begin its PACE program. Because
of the Lender Letters, it has now suspended the residential portion of the program indefinitely.
Placer County’s Treasurer estimates that as a direct result of Defendants’ action, $4.74 million in
energy efficiency retrofitting and solar jobs related to Placer County’s program alone will be
cancelled. The CaliforniaFIRST program is a joint PACE program that includes over 140 cities
and counties in California. The program was scheduled to launch in August of this year, but is
now on indefinite hold. Every prospective PACE participant who now cannot participate in the
program is being denied economic benefits, including, but not limited to, lower energy and water
bills and the opportunity to obtain favorable financing under PACE.

33. Defendants’ actions are, in addition, endangering the majority of the $110 million in
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 State Energy Program funds awarded by the

CEC to local governments. After the FHFA’s July 6, 2010 Statement, the CEC asked for
9
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clarification from DOE on distribution of federal stimulus funds for PACE programs in
California. DOE responded that, while it and the Administration continue to support PACE, in
light of Defendants’ actions, “prudent management of the Recovery Act compels DOE and
Recovery Act grantees to consider alternatives to programs in which the PACE assessment is
given a senior lien priority.” CEC now must consider whether to reallocate federal stimulus
funds to avoid the loss of tens of millions of dollars currently allocated for use in California
PACE programs. In addition, the CEC reports that Defendants’ actions threaten California’s
ability to obtain an infusion of funding from the Home Star Energy Retrofit Act of 2010 (H.R.
5019). Defendants’ actions also are interfering with the CEC’s ability to complete its duties
under California Assembly Bill 758, a state law that requires the CEC to develop a
comprehensive energy efficiency program for all existing residential and commercial buildings.

34. Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s actions are unfair as defined in California Business
and Professions Code § 17200, in that they have issued Lender Letters knowing that the effect
will be effectively to stop PACE in California, depriving California homeowners of the ability to
participate in the program and the State of California of the larger benefits of PACE. Fannie
Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s action are unlawful as defined in California Business and Professions
Code § 17200, in that they constitute intentional interference with the prospective economic
advantage, including the advantage that otherwise would flow to homeowners, in the form of
lower energy and water bills and favorable financing, and to the State of California in the form of
federal monies.

FAILURE TO CARRY OUT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

35. After Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac issued the May 5, 2010, Lender Letters, the
California Attorney General’s Office sought clarification from FHFA through letters dated May
17,2010, May 19, 2010, and May 22, 2010. The Attorney General’s letters are attached to this
Complaint as Exhibit C.

36.  OnJuly 6, 2010, the FHFA responded with its final, definitive Statement that ends
the effective operation of PACE in California. The Statement, discussed above, is attached to this

Complaint as Exhibit B.
10
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37. Under the National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”), 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 et seq., a
major federal action that may significantly impact the human environment cannot be approved
without an Environmental Assessment (“EA”) or Environmental Impact Statement (“EIS™).

38. NEPA is the “basic national charter for protection of the environment.” 40 C.F.R.
§1500.1. NEPA’s purpose is to ensure “public officials make decisions that are based on
understanding of environmental consequences, and to take actions that protect, restore, and
enhance the environment” and to “ensure that environmental information is available to public
officials and citizens before decisions are made and before actions are taken.” 40 C.F.R. §
1500.1(b)-(c). NEPA is designed to “encourage and facilitate public involvement in decisions
which affect the quality of the human environment.” 40 C.F.R. § 1500.2(d). “Human
environment” is defined “comprehensively to include the natural and physical environment and
the relationship of people with that environment.” 40 C.F.R. § 1508.14.

39. To achieve these purposes, NEPA requires all federal agencies to prepare a “detailed
statement,” the EIS, regarding all “major federal actions significantly affecting the quality of the
human environment.” 42 U.S.C. § 4332(c).

40. Where an agency does not know whether the effects of its proposed action will be
“significant,” it may prepare an EA. 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(b). An EA consists of an analysis of the
need for the proposed action, of alternatives to the proposed action, and of the environmental
impacts of both the proposed action and the alternatives. 40 C.F.R. § 1508.9. If the EA indicates
that the federal action may significantly affect the quality of the human environment, the agency
must prepare an EIS. 40 C.F.R. § 1501.4(c).

41. Under Ninth Circuit precedent, an agency must prepare an EIS if substantial
questions are raised as to whether a project may have significant effects.

42. If an agency decides not to prepare an EIS, it must prepare a Finding of No
Significant Impact explaining the reasons for the agency’s decision. 40 C.F.R. § 1508.13.

43. Here, the FHFA’s Statement puts an end to the effective operation of PACE in
California, wiping out in a single action a state-law sanctioned program designed to assist

homeowners and improve and protect the environment. FHFA has taken this action without
11
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considering even a single, less drastic alternative or conducting the required environmental
review.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Declaratory Relief; Against All Defendants)

44. California realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations of the preceding
paragraphs.

45. Under 28 U.S.C. § 2201 and Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 1060, California seeks a
declaration of legal rights and duties with respect to Defendants’ characterization of PACE
programs established under California law as “loans” as opposed to “assessments.” More
specifically, California seeks a declaration that:

a. PACE programs operate through assessments, not loans;

b. Assessments receive lien priority under California law;

c. Lien priority for assessments does not violate and does not run contrary to Fannie

Mae’s or Freddie Mac’s Uniform Security Instruments;

d. The GSE’s May 5, 2010 Lender Letters, and FHFA’s July 6, 2010 Statement

mischaracterize California law and the operation of the GSE’s own Uniform Security

Instruments.

46. Without a prompt judicial declaration, PACE programs in California will be
substantially reduced or eliminated, to the detriment of current and prospective PACE participants
and the many green industries that serve PACE, and the operation of an important state law
designed to serve California’s energy conservation, water conservation, and greenhouse gas
reduction objectives will be thwarted.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Unfair Business Practices, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200; Against Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac)
47. California realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations of the preceding

paragraphs.
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48. From May 5, 2010 and continuing to the present, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and
each of them, have engaged in and continue to engage in, aided and abetted and continue to aid
and abet, and conspired to and continue to conspire to engage in acts or practices that constitute
unfair competition as defined in California Business and Professions Code section 17200. In each
instance, Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s acts or practices have interfered and are interfering
with homeowners’ ability to participate in PACE and to achieve the economic benefits of the
program, and, by effectively stopping PACE, are depriving California and its residents of the
economic and environmental benefits of this state law-based program. Fannie Mae’s and Freddie
Mac’s act or practices, which were intended to, and/or had the effect of creating lien priority and
a more favorable financial position for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, include, but are not limited
to, the following:

a. characterization of PACE assessments as loans without support for such

characterization under California law; and

b. claims that PACE assessments providing first lien priority are contrary to Fannie

Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s Uniform Security Instruments.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Violation of National Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 et seq. and the
Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq.; Against FHFA)

49. California realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations of the preceding
paragraphs.

50. NEPA, 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(c), and its implementing regulations require all federal
agencies to prepare environmental impact analysis (an EA or an EIS) for any major action that
may significantly affect the quality of the human environment.

51. The FHFA is a federal agency. Its July 6, 2010 Statement on PACE, which for all
intents and purposes, forecloses residential PACE programs in California and across the nation, is

a major federal action within the meaning of NEPA.
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52. The FHFA'’s Statement may significantly affect the human environment within the
meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(c). The Statement ends in a single action a state-law sanctioned
program designed to assist homeowners and improve and protect the environment.

53. By failing to evaluate the effects of its action on the human environment through an
EA or an EIS, the FHFA has taken final agency action in violation of NEPA.

54. The Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 701 et seq., entitles a party to seek
judicial review of an agency action where a legal wrong is alleged and the party alleging the
violation is adversely affected or aggrieved by the agency action. Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 706, a
reviewing court shall hold unlawful and set aside agency action found to be arbitrary, capricious,
or otherwise not in accordance with the law, and compel agency action illegally withheld or
unreasonably delayed.

55. FHFA'’s failure to comply with NEPA and its supporting regulations constitutes
arbitrary and capricious agency action, is an abuse of discretion, and is contrary to law and to
procedures required by law. 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A), (D).

PRAYER

For the foregoing reasons, California prays for judgment as follows:

1. That the Court declare that under California law, PACE financing is accomplished
through assessments and not “loans,” and nothing in Fannie Mae’s or Freddie Mac’s Uniform
Security Instruments, as reflected in Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s longstanding business
practices, prohibits participation in PACE programs;

2. That the Court issue a temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction, and
permanent injunction restraining and enjoining Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac from taking any
adverse action against any mortgagee who is participating, or may participate, in a PACE
program under California law, or other action that has the effect of chilling PACE programs in
California;

3. That Defendants Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae and all persons who act in concert
with them be permanently enjoined from engaging in unfair competition or in any practice that

facilitates unfair competition as defined in California Business and Professions Code section
14
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17200, including, but not limited to, the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint, under the
authority of California Business and Professions Code section 17203;

4. That the Court issue a declaratory judgment that Defendant FHFA violated NEPA
and the APA by acting arbitrarily, capriciously, in an abuse of discretion, not in accordance with
law and/or without observance of proper procedures required by law by failing to prepare
appropriate environmental review before issuing its July 6, 2010 Statement and that the Court set
aside FHFA’s July 6, 2010 Statement;

5. That the Court award the costs of suit incurred; and

6. That the Court award such other and further relief as it may deem proper.

Dated: July 14, 2010 Respectfully Submitted,

EDMUND G. BROWN JR.
Attorney General of California

KEN ALEX

Senior Assistant Attorney General
JANILL L. RICHARDS

Supervising Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for the People of the State of
California, ex rel. Edmund G. Brown Jr.
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R FannieMae e

Lender Letter LL-2010-06 May 5, 2010
TO: All Fannie Mae Single-Family Sellers and Servicers
Property Assessed Clean Energy Loans

Farmie Mae has received a number of questions from seller-senvicers regarding govemment-
sponsored energy loans, sometimes refemed 1o as Property Assessed Clean Enesgy (PACE)
cans. PACE lcars genirdlly hive sutomalic first Sen priodly over praviously recorded
morigages. The rms of e Farnie MaaFredde Mac Uniform Security Instruments prohibit
ioans $hat have senior en status 10 a3 morigage. As PACE programs progress Bwough the
experimental phase and beyond, Fannie Mae will issue additional gudance 10 lenders &3 may
b8 needed from time 10 tme,

Fannie Mae supports anergy-efficency inllatves, and i willng 10 engage with federal and stale
SINGES &3 they consider sustanable programs 1o faciitale lending for anergy-efficency home
relrofies, while presenving ™e status of mongage loans ongirated as first lens.

Questions should be drecled to Bgsoue ConletRANNRMAcLOMm win the sudject ine
*PACE." Londers may ais0 wish 10 consull with their fecersl reguisicoes, who share concams
aout PACE prograns.

Mananne E. Sullvan
Senicr Vice President
Singlo-Family Chief Rsk Oficer

Lender Letler LL-2010-0%5 Page 1


mailto:Center@fanniemae.com
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.‘."..Eg...... Industry Letter

TO: Fred&e Mac SellerServicers May S, 2010

SUBJECT: First Lice Moctgages snd Energy Efficiect Loans

Seversl states have recently enacted lyws that sethorze localities 10 cresle tow energy efficiest lown
programs that geacrally rely on the placement of & first priocity hies 10 secure enargy «fficient home
unprovements. Programs under these lawy e sometimes referred to as Energy Loan Tax
Assessment Programs or Property Assessed Clean Esergy programs. Freddie Mac has degun o
recetve questions about these new eacrgy loas prograss,

The purpose of (s Industry Letier s to semind SellenServicers har an esergy-related lien may sot
be semice W azy Mongage dclvered 0 Froddic Mac. Scller Servicens thould determne whether 3
stale or locality m whach Sey origmate mortgages has aa energy Joan program, and whether a first
proeity len is permomed.  Freddie Mac will provide addinoal geidance in the event (e these
energy loas programs move deyond the experimentsl stage.

Fraddie Mac supports $he goal of eocouragng responsible fisancing of coergy efficient and
revowable esergy home improvements. We cootmoe to work with fedenl and suane agencies and
with SellerServicers on mitiatives for developiag workable coargy retrofit progras.

CONCLUSION

Ploase contact your Freddie Mac represensative oc call (300) FREDDIE f you have any questions
Seller/Servicers may also wish 10 conact their federal regalaton, who shase cconcens about ceergy
Bens.

ke gl
Purica | MeClmg
e
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: ) . Federal Housing Finance Agency
1700 G Swreet, N.W., Washisgton, D.C. 20852.0003

Telephone: (202) 414-3800
Facsimile: (202) 414.3523

www fhias gov

Joly 6, 2010

Honoeblke Edmund G. Brown, Je.
Anorney Genersl
State of Califoenta

1515 Clay Sireet

2 Poor

Oakland, Californs 946120550

Dear Amorey Genonl Browe:

Thank yous for speaking with mee this weckend. | was scery 10 talke tane sway (rom your holidey 1
ndicaved thae | will contact yoo agan and sce what speafics can be addressed per our dncussion.

As you know, in carlics commmatications, you indeatad concerss about the Property Assosed Clean
Emergy (PACL) prograess sod sctions by Fannie Mae and Proddie Mac. The Federal Howing
Fasance Agency (FHFA) has reviewed the PACE programs again, consdered safety and soundnes
e that they peesent o thetr current foem, carcfully reviewed the statun of cureene

snd coergy standards, had further dscusssons with federal and sonte officals snd undertaken o
charify the position of Fannk Mac and Freddie Mac on exssting PACE progras loass.

FHEA has determmed that the firse Bens sssocuted with PACE loans undermakon s nax
sssessments peosent 3 safory and sosadnes sese. Nevertheloss, FHEA ko directed the Facerprises
to wane the clauses 3 ther Uniform Secunty [sstrument, prohibatetg loass with 2 senoe priceity,
for loans made peioe 2o today’s date, thercly addressing the concerns of exsting hoeserwners wich
soch fiest ben PACK loans.

Because of safeey and soundaca concerm, FHEA b deeceing Fannse Mae, Freddie Mac and the
Feodersl Home Loan Banks to undermake certain actons that address PACE prograsns wich fine ben
provmscen. These ase described 0 the astached FHEFA Sestemnent. In the meantame, FHFA
bebieves & pawse & PACE sod PACE-Nke programs would be beneficial to persan a complere
review of the relevant ssves set forrh in the attached Stacemene. FHFA intends 1o contimes
working with all pastics towand 3 cooperative and well deveopad modd for encrgy retrolit londing,

While these actions are takon as & prodental mamee, VHFA suppors enengy reorofie kending
programs. As we have for the paat year, FHFA romass comentted 1o working with foderal and
state goversmnent sgencics and with the pravate sectoe 1o sssess what peograms could be deployed


http:www.fhfa.gov

Page 2

oe what cosrently exteng programs may be modéfiod that would operate to protect consaemers, to
facltae lending while svoiding rsks ro leaders, 10 provide dlariry on energy efficency and 10 make
emergy conservanon a goal that & being actively pursued st the resadential level

If you have any questions, you rusy contace me at 202 414 3788

Wieh all bost wobes, | am

Sarcerely,
517%%
. Pollard
Gieneral Couoad
Attachenent

cc:  Clifford Rechaschaffen
Jani 1. Richards



FEDERAL HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

For lmamediate Release Contact: Corinne Ressell  (202) Qu-ﬁal
July 6, 2080 Sefanic Mullis  (202) 4346576

FHFA Statement on Certain Energy
Retrofit Loan Programs

After careful review and over a year of working with federal and state government ageacies, the
Foderal Hossing Fisance Agency (FHFA) has determined that certain enerngy retrofit Jending
prograss prosest sigaificant safety and soundaess concorns that must be addressed by Famnie
Mae, Freddie Mac and the Federal Home Loan Banks. Specifically, programs denominated as
Property Assessod Clean Energy (PACE) seck to foster lending for retrofits of residential or
commercial s through a county or city's tax assessment regime. Under most of these
programs, such loans aoguire a priority lien over existing mortgages, though certain states have
chasen not to adopt such priority positions for thelr Joans.

First liens established by PACE loans are unlike routine tax assessments and pose unusual and
difficult risk management challenges for lenders, servicers and mortgage securities investors.
The stae and duration of PACE loans exceod typical Jocal tax peograms and do not have the
traditional community benefits associated with taxing intiatives.

FHFA urged state and Jocal governaents 1o reconsider these programs and coatinues to call for
& pause In such ms 50 concerns can be addressed. First liezs for such loans repeesent a

key alteration of traditional moetgage lending penctice. They present sigaificant risk 10 Jenders
and secondary market estities, may alter valuations for scetgage-backed securities and are sot
essential for successful programs 10 spur energy conservation,

While the first lion position effered in most PACE programs minimises credit risk for imvestors

funding the prograsss, % alters traditional lkending priccities. Underwriting for PACE programs
results i collateral-hased Jending rather than lending hased upon ability-10-pay, the absence of
Truth-in-Lending Act and other consumer peotections, and uncertainty a3 1o whether the home
improvements actually prodoce meaniagfd reductions in eaergy consumption,

Efforts are jost underway to develop saderwriting and consumer peotection standards as well
as energy retrofit standards that are aritical for homeowners and lenders to understand the
riskx and rewards of any energy retrofit lending program. Howewer, first Bens that disrupt a
fragile housing finance market and long-standing lending priorities, the absence of robust
waderwriting standards to protect homeowners and the lack of energy retrofit standards to
assist homeowners, appralsers, inspectors and denders determine the value of retrofit products
combine to raise safety and soundness concerns.



On May 5. 20100, Fanmie Mae and Preddie Mac alerted their seller-servicers to gain an

understanding of whether there are existing or prospective PACE or PACE-like programs in

Jurisdictions where they do business, to be aware that programs with first lens run contrary to

the Fannie Mae-Freddie Mac Uniform Security Instressent and that the Esterprises would

m.ddtbml iaznce should the programs move beyond the experimental stage. Those
Ieﬂmmnﬂhdeﬁ.

Today, FHFA is directing Fannic Mae, Freddie Mac and the Federal Homne Loan Banks o
undertake the following prudential actions:

1. For amy homeowser who obtaised a PACE or PACE-like loas with a priority fiest lien
peior 10 this date, FHFA is directing Fannie Mae and Froddie Mac to walve
their Uniforss Security Instrument prohibitions against such senior Bens.

2. Inaddressing PACE peograms with fiest liens, Fanaie Mac and Proddie Mac should
undertake actioss that protoct their safe and sound operations. These include, but are
not lim#ed toc

- Adjusting loan-to-value ratios to reflect the maximum permissible PACE loas
amount available to borrowers in PACE jurisdictions;

« Ensuring that loan covenants require approval/consent for amy PACE loan:

« Tightening borrower debt-to-income ratios to account for additional obligations
assockated with possible future PACE loans;

: that martgages on properties in a Jurisdiction offering PACE ke programs
porrs g Josartmes ke ab e A Loy ot iy

Fansie Mae and Freddie Mac should e additional guidance s seeded,

3 The Foderal Home Loan Banks are directed 10 review their collateral policies in onder to
mnthﬁu“www&mwawbymmwmmmw

Nothing in this Statement affects the normal underwriting prograsns of the rogulated entities or
their dealings with PACE programs that do not have a senior ben priority. Further, nothing in
mmmmwmmmm:& way underwriting related to traditiosal
tax programs, but is focused solely on sendor lien P Jending initsatives.

FHFA recognizes that PACE and PACE-like programs pose additional lending challenges, but
also represent serious efforts 1o reduce encrgy consumption. FHFA remains committed to
warking with foderal, state, and local government agescies to develop and implement energy

retrofit kending programs with appeopriate underwriting and consemer protection
standards. ﬂer-ﬂlabmﬁamwmnptbe of energy efficiency
stanclands to suppost such programs,
LE L
The Mederal Howsng Firence repudates Fasrie Mae, Frodoe Moc snd the 12 Federad Home Lo Rends.

These thaw §5.9 rilken bn forthe VS moriets
SO TR - sponsored Mm Anding marigape
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EDMUND G. BROWN JR. State of California
Attorney General DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
1515 CLAY STREET, 20TH FLOOR

P.0. BOX 70550
OAKLAND, CA 94612-0550

Public: (510) 622-2100

Telephone: (510) 622-2130

Facsimile: (510) 622-2100

E-Mail: Cliff.Rechtschaffen@doj.ca.gov

May 17,2010

Via Facsimile and U.S. Mail

Edward DeMarco

Acting Director

Federal Housing Finance Agency
1700 G Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20552-0003
FAX: (202) 414-3823

RE:  Fannie Mae Lender Letter LL-2010-06 (May 5, 2010) and
Freddie Mac Industry Letter (May 5, 2010) re Property Assessed Clean Energy
(PACE) Programs

Dear Acting Director DeMarco:

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) programs authorize local governments to
finance energy efficiency and renewable energy improvements to the benefit of homeowners and
small businesses. In California, PACE financing is not accomplished through loans in the
traditional sense, but rather through local governments’ long-standing and well-recognized
powers to assess and tax. PACE programs in California can assist thousands of individual
participants statewide, help to drive the State’s green economy, and create thousands of jobs.

On May 5, 2010, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac issued short, somewhat cryptic lender and
industry advice letters concerning PACE programs. While the advice letters do not expressly
mention California PACE programs, they have nonetheless caused confusion and concern among
California PACE stakeholders. By this letter, we request that the Federal Housing Finance
Authority (FHFA) immediately confirm in writing that the advice letters do not affect PACE in
California.


mailto:Cliff.Rechtschaffen@doj.ca.gov

Edward DeMarco, Acting Director
May 17,2010
Page 2

As you are likely aware, the California Attorney General’s Office at the end of last year
began a discussion with FHFA staff about PACE in California. During these discussions, your
staff assured this Office that we would continue to work together on issues related to PACE.
Relying in part on this assurance, California has invested substantial resources in PACE
programs, consistent with the White House’s “Recovery Through Retrofit” policy document and
with the express support of the Department of Energy. A substantial portion of the
approximately $300 million in Energy Efficiency and Block Grant funding, and a substantial
portion of the over $220 million in additional American Recovery and Reinvestment Act funds
administered by the California Energy Commission through its State Energy Program, have been
dedicated to PACE programs. Moreover, California recently passed legislation creating a $50
million state reserve fund that will allow participating local governments to obtain financing for
PACE on more favorable terms.

The disruption caused by Fannie Mae’s and Freddie Mac’s recent actions may have
serious financial implications for participating local governments and the homeowners and small
businesses participating in these programs in California. To take just one example, Sonoma
County, through its PACE program, already has financed over 800 energy improvement projects.
But the repercussions will be wider still. PACE programs in California create reliable markets
for new technologies in energy efficiency, renewable energy, and water efficiency. They thus
support green manufacturing jobs and thousands of additional jobs associated with installation
and maintenance of energy efficiency and renewable energy projects. Now is not the time to
create unnecessary uncertainty in these important emerging businesses and industries.

Based on our recent conversation with your General Counsel, Alfred Pollard, we
understand that the May 5, 2010, letters were not intended in any way to signal a change in the
position of FHFA, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac regarding PACE in California. Accordingly, we
request that FHFA immediately confirm in writing that participants in California PACE
programs are not in violation of Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac Uniform Security Instruments
prohibiting loans that have a senior lien status to a mortgage. We are open to discussing with
you what form that confirmation should take, including, but not limited to, withdrawal of the
May 5, 2010, letters.

We would prefer not to have to pursue some form of declaratory relief to resolve the

confusion, but, because of the importance of the issue to California, we certainly reserve that as
an option if a clear and unequivocal response is not forthcoming.

— continued —



Edward DeMarco, Acting Director
May 17, 2010
Page 3

Once this immediately pressing matter is resolved, we look forward to discussing with
you what longer-term solutions may be warranted to foster the continued responsible
development of PACE programs in California.

Sincerely,
/s

CLIFFORD RECHTSCHAFFEN
Special Assistant Attorney General

/s

JANILL L. RICHARDS
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

For EDMUND G. BROWN JR.
Attorney General

cc: Joseph R. Biden Jr., Vice President
Dianne Feinstein, U.S. Senator
Barbara Boxer, U.S. Senator
Steven Chu, Secretary, U.S. Department of Energy
Shaun Donovan, Secretary, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Timothy Geithner, Secretary, U.S. Department of the Treasury
Carol Browner, Director, White House Office of Energy and Climate Change
Nancy Sutley, Chair, Council on Environmental Quality
Michael J. Williams, President and Chief Executive Officer, Fannie Mae
Charles E. Haldeman, Jr., Chief Executive Officer, Freddie Mac
Arnold Schwarzenegger, Governor, State of California
Bill Lockyer, State Treasurer and Chair, CAEATFA
Karen Douglas, Chair, California Energy Commission



EDMUND G. BROWN JR. State of California
Attorney General DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
1515 CLAY STREET, 20TH FLOOR

P.0. BOX 70550
OAKLAND, CA 94612-0550

Public: (510) 622-2100
Telephone: (510) 622-2130
Facsimile: (510) 622-2100

E-Mail: janill.richards@doj.ca.gov

May 19, 2010

Via Facsimile and U.S. Mail

Alfred M. Pollard

General Counsel

Federal Housing Finance Agency
1700 G Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20552-0003
FAX: (202) 414-3823

RE:  Federal Housing Finance Authority (FHFA) Letter of May 18, 2010
Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Programs

Dear Mr. Pollard:

Thank you for your letter confirming receipt of the California Attorney General’s letter dated
May 17, 2010. We appreciate your promise to respond to our specific request for confirmation that the
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac advice letters of May 5, 2010, were not intended to affect California PACE
programs. We are, however, concerned that FHFA did not commit to providing that response within a
specific timeframe. As we stated in our previous correspondence, the advice letters are causing
unacceptable disruption to PACE in California, to the detriment of participating homeowners and small
businesses and the many green industries that support the program.

To expedite this process, we request a telephone meeting with you and Acting Director

DeMarco, preferably before the end of this week.

Sincerely,

JANILL L. RICHARDS
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

For =~ EDMUND G. BROWN JR.
Attorney General


mailto:janill.richards@doj.ca.gov

EDMUND G. BROWN JR. Stave of Callfornie
Atvorney General DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
1SS CLAY STREET, 2X0TH FLOOR

PO 30X 4%
OAKLAND, CA M2 0430

m..n-é 3' m.a:gg
Facairsle: (930)422-2200

Wee A pov
Junc 22, 2010
Edweed DeMasco, Acting Dizector
Federal Housing Finance Agency
1700 G. Sweet, NW,
Washasgion, D.C. 205520003 FAX: (202)414 3823
RE: Esergy Efficicocy and Renewable Excrgy Asscssments (PACE) and Liea Priority
Dear Acting Direcsor DeMarco;

On May 17, 2010, we seen you & leter expeesting concers sbout leader and industry
advice Jeters issued by Fassic Mac and Froddic Mac on May 5, 2010, These advice kmers
equated fiasncing usder Property Assessed Clean Eacrgy (PACE) programs with “loass.™ sad
stroagly suggested that sach “loans,™ because they Bave lien prionsty, would peechade sale of
mocigages 10 Fansie and Froddic. As we have repeatedly made clear %0 FHFA General Counsel,
Alfred Pollaed, snder Califoenia law, PACE flnancing is achieved through specinl assessments,
not loans, The distinetion is key. Like other special asscsenents, sach as thoae wsed by
Califoenia’s local governments since the beginning of the hast cemtury w0 finance road paviag and
ndewnll improvements, uspaid PACE assessments take prceity over morigages, Fanme Mae's
and Froddie Mac's own standardized docaments recognize the prionty of assessment bees,

While e advice lemers arc ambiguous, the effect they have had in s stne is soc. The
letrers have had & Sovastating impact ca PACE programs in Califormis, placing ot risk Sundreds
of millions of dollars of foderal stimulas fuading, hundseds of millioas of dollaes of state, local
and peivate funding, snd impacting Califorsia’s efforts % promote green jobs and groeahouss gas
Vice Prenident, Members of Congress, the Department of Encegy, B¢ private lending
commusity, and Be Council on Eavircamental Quality, your agency has taken no action 10
resolve the sbhation or even sdentify & process by which the matier willl be resoived.

The FHFA has raised a potentially sesrious sswoe - that PACE programs may incresse the
sk of default by increasing hoeseouner debt. As e attachod Rypothetical cxtablishes,
however, the peactical effect oa Fasaie Mae's sad Freddie Mac’s portfolios is minimal, given the
relatrvely small Besg that may result from missed PACE assessments and the defauit rate that
reasonably can be expected in PACE communities, Nonstheless, Califomnis and the local
govemmments St are attempaing 1o move forward with PACE peograms are peepared -
immediately - 10 discuss with you how these risks have already been addressed and minimsizred
through detasled peogram requiremcnts and “best peactices.” Depending oo what further
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Jane 22, 2010
Page 2

concers the FHFA may have, we comanit to working with you to ideatsfy and implement further
actions as sceded. We cannot, however, affeed your ageacy’s continued silence. The time 10 act
om this matier is at hand

There is o great deal at stake bere for Califomnia and for the nation's economy. We take
seriously the FHFA's concerns about mortgage security and are prepared to address those
concerns. We ask you to take seriously the nead 80 move formard mmediately with California’s
PACE programs, with energy efficicacy and renewable energy retrofit effoets, with federal
stimulas funding, and with California’s determined efforts 10 create jobs and ecomomic
momentum.

We would like to set up 2 meeting as soom as possible in ceder o resolve this matier. We
believe that the meeting would benefit from the participation of the Vice President’s Office, the
Govermnor's Office, and other officials who have been working extensively on this matter. Please
contact me ot your eazliest convendence by te end of this month so that we can move forwand in
the most constructive manner possible.

Thank you for your immediate attention.

For EDMUND G. BROWN JR.
Attomey General

Altachments

e Joseph R. Baden Jr,, Vice President
Dissnie Feiratein, U.S, Scnmoe
Barbara Boxer, US, Senator
Steven Chu, Secretary, ULS, Department of Esergy
Shaus Dossovan, Seceetary, U.S. Departmest of Houwsing and Urban Development
Timothy Geithner, Secretary, U.S. Departascet of the Treaxwary
Carol Beowner, Director, White House Office of Encryy and Clisnate Chasge
Naacy Sutley, Chale, Council on Eavircamental Quality
Michael J, Willimemns, President aad Chief Executive Officer, Fasaic Mae
Charles E. Haldeman, Jr,, Chief Execative Officer, Froddie Mac
Armnold Schwarzenegger, Governor, Stne of California
Bill Lockyer, State Treasurer and Chale, CAEATFA
Karen Douglas, Chair, Califorria Encrgy Commission



Hysothetical Exploring Risk Assecinted with PACK Liens
Averaged Over 3 Portiolio of Monigages

The impact of the PACE financing on the risk borse by mortgage lenders 5 minmal. The following
mortgage foreciodure senano shows why:

A homeowner of a house valued at $300,000 with a $250,000 mertgage seeks 515,000 in PACE
fnanding, reflecting the costs of & rescwabie aserpy system and enecgy e¥iclency vpgrades, less
al available redates and iscestives. (Some large 30Me projects may cost more; efficiency-only
spgrades wil be substantially less )

WER 2 7% imterest rate [which is on the high side) and 2 20-year payback period, the estimated
arsual PACE aisessaent would be $1.470°

The homeowner s1055 paying the morgage and property taves, including assessments.
Delinquency on the mortgage occurs when the home owner Is less than three monthly
payments behing It the mortgage, and default when the homeowner is theee of mone manthly
papments behing, defaul triggers forecioswre |

M the tme of foreciosere for faling to pay the mortpage, & Is Moely that at most, one PACE
assessment of “$1,500 would have achieved priceity Ben status. [This is because under
Catlornia law, there B no acceleration of the entire amount financed for fadure 10 pay an
assesyment, Including a PACE assessment; rather, the new Owner assumes the continuing
CDRGATION 1O pary the assesaments as they become due )

If we rus the same hypothetical with PACT Anancing of $20,000, the PACE hen consisting of one missed
o assessment would be 51,960,

This exercive sugpests that with & “pectfolio” of Farmie/Freddie mortgages that have PACK lera,
aisuming & high foceciosure rate of 10K, PACE senority would sverage $150 per home (30% x $1,500).
Using & moce reascnable foreciosure rate of 5%, average PACE senionty per home would be 3 mere $75.

" Resuits obtained by using Scnoma County's asaus! payment caiculator, avadlable at



http://www.urbanstrategies.org/foreclosure/Time
http://sonomacountyenergy.org/lower.php?url=caleulator

